

One Sealaska Plaza, Ste. 302, Juneau, AK 99801

P: (907)790-5300, F: (907)463-5480 www.arsstc.org

Alaska Remote Seller Sales Tax Commission Board of Directors Meeting November 15, 2023 10:00 am – 12:00 pm

Virtual via Zoom

Board of Director Attendees:

- Libby Bakalar
- Scott Bloom
- Janette Bower
- Melissa Haley
- Brandi Harbaugh
- Ruth Kostik
- Joan Miller
- 1. Call to order
- 2. Approval of the Agenda
- 3. Approval of Minutes
 - a. 9.20.23 Board minutes
- 4. Public participation on Non-Agenda Items
- 5. Official Business
 - a. Review and discussion of AML/ARSSTC Service agreement renewal
 - b. Review and approval of draft Collections Policy
 - c. FY24 Financials Update
- 6. Comments
- 7. Adjournment



One Sealaska Plaza, Ste. 302, Juneau, AK 99801

P: (907)790-5300, F: (907)463-5480 www.arsstc.org

Alaska Remote Seller Sales Tax Commission Board of Directors Meeting Minutes September 20, 2023 10:00 am – 12:00 pm

Virtual via Zoom

Board of Director Attendees:

- Libby Bakalar
- Scott Bloom
- Melissa Haley
- Brandi Harbaugh
- Ruth Kostik
- Joan Miller

Board of Directors Absent:

- Janette Bower
- 1. Call to order
 - a. Call to order at 10:05 am
- 2. Approval of the Agenda
 - a. Motion to approve by Joan Miller; Seconded by Scott Bloom
- 3. Approval of Minutes
 - a. 7.19.23 Board minutes
 - i. Motion to approve by Melissa Haley; Seconded by Scott Bloom
 - b. 8.18.23 Board minutes
 - i. Motion to approve by Joan Miller; Seconded by Melissa Haley
- 4. Public participation on Non-Agenda Items
 - a. No public participation
- 5. Official Business
 - a. Policy Committee Report
 - Maureen Graham presented on the 7/18 and 8/16 Policy Committee meetings. Development of interpretation for sellers who don't reach economic nexus or no longer meet nexus. Reviewed account closure form and updated. Continuing to work on collections process, will bring to Board in future meeting
 - b. Review and approval of 2023.02 Economic Nexus and Account Closures
 - i. Board appreciated example scenarios in the Interpretation.
 - ii. Motion by Melissa Haley to adopt Interpretation 2023.02 as presented. Seconded by Libby Bakalar. No objections.



One Sealaska Plaza, Ste. 302, Juneau, AK 99801

P: (907)790-5300, F: (907)463-5480 www.arsstc.org

c. First review of proposed AML/ARSSTC Service agreement renewal

- i. AML is not bringing forward changes at this time, but AML does anticipate recommending an increase to the overhead rate, currently set at 8%. Will bring recommendation to Finance Committee and then bring to Board at November 2023 board meeting. 8% was set up at beginning of program with no real understanding of costs and expenses. Now, we have more experience and data.
- ii. Request by Board for additional data on AML expenses including how AML is allocating expenses in light of AML's continued expansion.

d. ARSSTC Annual Meeting & Board election

- i. Board discussion around individual schedules. Assuming virtual meeting will be an option, Board was good with proposed date/time.
- ii. Discussion on Board vacancies-Libby Bakalar expressed a desire to remain on Board.
- iii. Additional discussion on nomination process and board qualifications.

e. FY24 Financials Update

i. Complete FY24 financials not available at this time due to FY23 audit in progress and staff personal leave. Current revenues are 7% over budgeted amounts.

6. Comments

a. Brandi Harbaugh expressed appreciation in being able to serve as Board President for 2023.

7. Adjournment

a. Adjourned at 10:45 am

RE: Annual Review of AML Indirect Rate

AML's indirect rate policy is to charge the de minimis rate of 10% on all programs that have external direction and guidance, including all state and federal, and partner, programs.

AML will initiate within the next year a federally negotiated indirect rate, which will be legally defensible and applied at least to all federal grant awards. We would anticipate that this be between 25-35%, which is the average for the nonprofit sector.

The table below provides FY23 actuals as it relates to AML administration, less costs directly expensed to ARSSTC. Administration costs are all those that aren't directly charged to a program. While AML will continue to work toward finalizing what should and shouldn't be considered, based on federal guidance, the outcome is unlikely to change much, in terms of %. In no scenario would AML's indirect rate fall below that currently in the ARSSTC agreement, of 8%, which is considered subsidized by AML.

| | Total | | Per Employee | | Allocated | | |
|---------------------|-------|--------------|--------------|-----------|-----------|------------|------------|
| Audit | \$ | 21,133.36 | \$ | 960.61 | \$ | 3,842.43 | |
| IT Services | \$ | 28,300.58 | \$ | 1,286.39 | \$ | 5,145.56 | |
| Legal | \$ | 22,258.50 | \$ | 1,011.75 | \$ | 4,047.00 | |
| Parking | \$ | 5,589.45 | \$ | 254.07 | \$ | 1,016.26 | |
| Rent | \$ | 65,635.00 | \$ | 2,983.41 | \$ | 11,933.64 | |
| Equipment | \$ | 18,229.24 | \$ | 828.60 | \$ | 3,314.41 | |
| Insurance and Taxes | \$ | 24,491.62 | \$ | 1,113.26 | \$ | 4,453.02 | |
| Office Supplies | \$ | 36,232.35 | \$ | 1,646.93 | \$ | 6,587.70 | |
| Subscriptions | \$ | 20,331.35 | \$ | 924.15 | \$ | 3,696.61 | |
| Bank Charges | \$ | 7,574.93 | \$ | 344.32 | \$ | 1,377.26 | |
| Personnel | \$ | 575,504.25 | \$ | 26,159.28 | \$1 | 104,637.14 | |
| | \$ | 825,280.63 | \$ | 37,512.76 | \$1 | 150,051.02 | Per person |
| Total Expenses | \$3 | 3,048,569.68 | | 8.00% | \$ | 34,000.00 | Current |
| Admin / Expenses | | 27.07% | | | \$1 | 126,342.34 | Actual |
| Total ARSSTC exp | \$ | 466,706.00 | | 10% | \$ | 46,670.60 | De minimis |

The table provides a number of different ways to think about indirect:

- The actual rate that should be considered indirect would be 27.07%. This is the admin costs as a percentage of total expenses.
- ARSSTC currently is charged an 8% rate on its total expenditures.
- A de minimis rate of 10% would have been approximately \$12k more in FY23.
- An actual rate would have been nearly four times what ARSSTC paid.
- If AML were to allocate it on a per employee basis, it would have been almost five times.

The review of AML's indirect rate and corresponding policy is the responsibility of the AML board of directors. The more correct allocation to ARSSTC should be 10%, which is recommended.



ONE SEALASKA PLAZA, SUITE 302 • JUNEAU, ALASKA 99801 TEL (907) 586-1325 • FAX (907) 463-5480 • WWW.AKML.ORG

Member of the National League of Cities and the National Association of Counties

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Provision of Professional Services for the

Alaska Remote Seller Sales Tax Commission

Section 1. Purpose. This Memorandum of Agreement (this "MOA") is effective as of the 21st day of January, 2023 (the "Effective Date"), between the Alaska Municipal League ("AML"), an Alaska intergovernmental, not-for-profit organization, and the Alaska Remote Seller Sales Tax Commission (the "Commission"), an interlocal governmental entity, to set forth the terms for AML to provide administrative and support services to the Commission.

Section 2. Scope of Services. AML will provide the following services for the Commission, and/or as directed by the Board of Directors (the "Services"):

- 1. Support Commission Board, Subcommittee, and Member meetings, activities, and communications, including the following tasks:
 - a. Make meeting arrangements, and provide for notice in conformance with Commission Bylaws
 - b. Provide agenda support
 - c. Prepare meeting minutes
 - d. Provide compliance oversight
- 2. Support member meetings, activities, and communications, including the following tasks:
 - a. Maintain Commission member list
 - b. Administer annual member meeting
 - c. Conduct annual rate, boundary, and member Code review
 - d. Send monthly emails with updates on compliance, reporting, and software development
 - e. Establish a Commission website with information available to members, taxpayers, and prospective members
 - f. AML will provide or organize the provision of legal support, at the direction of the Commission, when legal services are needed for code enforcement actions or on behalf of the Commission.
- 3. Enter into and manage software contracts necessary for collection, remittance, and reporting, and all other services as required by the Commission, with the provision that all contracts may revert to the Commission if the Alaska Municipal League no longer acts as the administrator on behalf of the Commission. The Commission shall be notified 90 days prior to contract change or conclusion, and have the opportunity to assume, terminate or change the contract.
 - a. GovOS Support as required by contract attached as Exhibit A
 - b. TTR Support as required by contract attached as Exhibit B

- 4. Coordinate Commission decision-making and operational activities through AML's Executive Director
 - a. Communicate staffing roles and responsibilities
- 5. Manage day-to-day operations of the Commission, including the following tasks:
 - a. Conduct outreach to online retailers and national contacts
 - b. Conduct outreach to Alaska businesses
 - c. Establish and manage separate accounting.
 - i. Reconcile accounts on a daily basis
 - ii. Remit net revenue to members on an agreed-upon and consistent date
 - iii. Report review in partnership with members
 - d. Follow the policies and procedures as set out by the board
 - e. Manage and respond to legal or other questions from or directed to the Commission
 - f. Seller Compliance review in partnership with members
 - g. Contract for a compliance audit and prepare required materials for audit
 - i. Make available the auditor to present to the board, and provide to the board the audit and oversight documents
 - h. Maintain (including, without limitation, backing up its computer files, and maintaining facilities and procedures for safekeeping and retaining documents) books and records of the Commission and its operations
 - i. Provide an annual report
- **Section 3. Equipment and Supplies.** AML will provide all necessary equipment and facilities to timely and efficiently perform the Services.
- **Section 4. Standard of Care.** AML agrees, at all times, to complete the Services in a professional and timely fashion. In performing the Services, AML must exercise all due care and caution in accordance with the best industry practices. The Commission will cooperate fully to ensure that AML is capable of timely performing the Services.
- **Section 5.** Commission Scope of Responsibilities. The Commission shall act in good faith in the execution of this MOA, the Commission Bylaws, and the Intergovernmental MOA. The Commission acknowledges the legal status of the Alaska Municipal League. The Commission has the following duties and authority:
 - Review and work with AML to develop a budget consistent with the administrative needs of the Commission; and approve as determined by the Board
 - Review and approve annual staffing plan (recognizing the Commission has no direct authority over AML staff), consistent with the budget, in support of necessary Commission functions
 - Approve contracts valued over \$10,000
 - Direct all Board and Commission inquiries and requests through the Executive Director of AML or designee
 - Establish administrative policies and procedures for the operations of the Commission
 - Review and approve a marketing and communication plans and strategies

- Approve implementation and amendment process of the MOA and Code
- Participate in and receive the annual audit report and oversight documents
- Conduct an annual performance review of AML's activities
- **Section 6. Term.** The term of this MOA shall be one year from the Effective Date. After the term, the parties will review the MOA and may amend the MOA as mutually desired and renew. After the term, the MOA (amended or not) may renew for two additional years upon approval of the board, unless sooner amended or terminated as provided below in this MOA.
- **Section 7. Amendment**. This MOA may be amended at any time by mutual written agreement of the parties.
- **Section 8. Renewal**. AML and the Commission may mutually agree to renew this MOA for successive terms after the first three years of this MOA.
- **Section 9. Termination for Convenience.** This MOA may be terminated by either party upon 120 days' advance written notice. In the event that this MOA is terminated, all finished or unfinished documents, data compilations, reports, and/or other materials prepared by AML under this Agreement are the property of the Commission and AML hereby agrees to peaceably return all such items to the Commission by or upon the effective date of termination and as may be further instructed by the City. AML shall be entitled to receive compensation for invoiced work performed to the effective date of the termination.
- **Section 10. Remediation**. If the Commission determines that AML has failed to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations of this MOA, the Commission will notify AML in writing of these deficiencies, work with AML to take action to address deficiencies within thirty (30) days, with expected remediation within ninety (90) days.
- Section 11. Termination for Cause. If, through any cause, AML shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations under this MOA, unresolved within ninety (90) days and determined to be significantly detrimental to the governance or fiduciary oversight of the Commission, then the Commission shall thereafter have the right to immediately terminate this MOA, upon a vote of the Board of Directors, by giving written notice to AML and specifying the effective date thereof. The Commission reserves the right to terminate for cause within thirty (30) if Board determines that circumstances necessitate. In either event, all finished or unfinished deliverable items under this MOA prepared by AML shall, at the option of the Commission, become its property, and AML shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such materials prior to the effective date of termination. In such event, AML shall not be relieved of liability to the Commission for damages sustained by the Commission by virtue of any breach of this MOA, and the Commission may withhold any payment due AML for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due the Commission from such breach can be determined.

Section 12. Fees. Fees will be applied to total revenues upon collection each month, deducted according to these terms, and the remainder of the revenue remitted to the member annual revenues are determined by the Commission's fiscal year.

A. <u>GovOS</u>. AML will facilitate payment of the Commission's GovOS contracts fees, which may be reviewed and amended after five years after the Commission's contract (November 2024).

| \$0-\$10M | \$10M-\$20M | \$20M+ |
|-----------|-------------|--------|
| 12% | 8% | 4% |

B. <u>TTR</u>. AML will facilitate payment of the Commission's TTR contract fees, which was reviewed after its three-year initial term and extended for a one year term expiring in November 2023. TTR's fees are addressed within the following fee structure on annual gross sales tax collected.

| \$0-\$10M | \$10M-\$20M | \$20M+ |
|-----------|-------------|--------|
| 1.25% | 1.0% | .75% |

C. <u>Commission</u>. The Commission's fees will be collected monthly, applied as an annual, board-approved percent of revenue to gross sales tax collected, consistent with the budget. The total percent collected from fees (between GovOS, TTR and AML) should be limited to not more than 20% in any one month, with the maximum preferred limit at 15% (and the intent to work toward lowering fees as quickly as possible). The Commission as a whole may approve a higher percentage if circumstances demand.

D. AML Expenses

AML will submit monthly reports of expenses to the Board, and the Commission will pay AML's direct expenses and 8% overhead expenses upon approval by the board or designee. Overhead will be applied to direct expenses as compensation for rent, computers and electronic equipment, telecommunication equipment and services, and indirect staff time in proportion to the Commission's share of each line item as approved in the budget. Direct and indirect expenses will be evaluated annually to ensure appropriate allocation. Cost beyond costs approved in the budget are not a reimbursable direct expense and must be approved by the board of directors. AML's direct expenses include, and as provided for in the annual budget are:

- 1. Staff who are directly responsible for Commission programs. Costs include salary and benefits.
- 2. Contracts, insurance, and miscellaneous costs directly related to AML's performance of the Services

- 3. Any Commission-approved loan or start-up capital by AML will be repaid in subsequent years in a manner as determined by the Board and in agreement with AML, to include any agreed upon interest.
- 4. AML expenses paid by the Commission may not exceed the approved budget in any fiscal year, unless a prior request to amend and increase the budget has been received and approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 13. Insurance.

AML will maintain general (currently \$2,000,000) and professional liability insurance coverages at all times during this MOA with limits and retention amounts in commercially-prudent amounts consistent with industry standards to cover any loss arising as a result of any real or alleged negligence, errors, or omissions on the part of AML's officers, agents or employees (minimum \$1,000,000) in any aspect of the performance of services under this MOA. Notwithstanding, the commercial general liability must include minimum coverage of \$1,000,000.

The policy must name the Commission as an additional insured and provide that the policy may not be cancelled without 30 days' prior written notice to the Commission. Upon reasonable request, the Commission shall be furnished with a certificate evidencing issuance of such policy of liability insurance, and such certificate shall recite that said policy may not be canceled without 30 days' prior written notice to the Commission.

AML shall also maintain Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance (with minimum limits of \$100,000 per accident). Worker's compensation insurance and employers' liability insurance shall be in compliance with the statutory requirements of the State of Alaska, and any other statutory obligation, whether federal or state pertaining to compensation of injured employees. The worker's compensation insurance and employers' liability insurance shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision in favor of the Commission.

Section 14. Indemnification.

A. AML's Obligation to Indemnify. AML shall, indemnify, defend and hold the Commission harmless, including its directors, officers, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors, and permitted assigns (the "Commission Indemnified Parties") from and against all liability, damages, demands, penalties, fines, causes of action, losses, costs, or expenses, including attorneys' fees asserted against, imposed upon or incurred by any Commission Indemnified Party arising out of or resulting from: (a) any breach or nonfulfillment by AML of, or any failure by AML to perform, any of the covenants, terms, or conditions of, or any of its duties or obligations under, this MOA, including without limitation any failure of AML to assume responsibility for any of the Services in a timely manner in accordance with this MOA except to the extent that such breach, nonfulfillment, or failure is caused by the actions of any Commission Indemnified Party; (b) any negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct related to this MOA; or (c) any successful enforcement of this indemnity.

B. The Commission's Obligation to Indemnify. To the extent allowed by law and subject to availability and appropriation of funds by Members, the Commission shall indemnify and hold harmless AML and its directors, officers, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors, and permitted assigns (the "AML Indemnified Parties") from and against all liability, damages, demands, penalties, fines, causes of action, losses, costs, or expenses, including attorneys' fees asserted against, imposed upon or incurred by any AML Indemnified Party arising out of or resulting from: (a) any breach or nonfulfillment by the Commission of, or any failure by the Commission to perform, any of the covenants, terms or conditions of, or any of its duties or obligations under, this MOA except to the extent that such breach, nonfulfillment, or failure is caused by the actions of any AML Indemnified Party; (b) any negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct related to this MOA; or (c) any successful enforcement of this indemnity.

Section 15. **Miscellaneous.** This MOA does not create, and shall not be construed as creating, any rights enforceable by any person or entity not a party to this MOA. Nothing in this MOA shall be deemed or construed to create the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association between the Commission and AML. This MOA may not be assigned without the prior written consent of the other party, which may not be unreasonably withheld. This MOA represents the entire agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this MOA and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous, express or implied, written or oral MOAs, representations, and conditions between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this MOA. This MOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, including by electronically transmitted signature, and each counterpart shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same MOA. This MOA may only be modified upon mutual MOA in writing by both parties. The failure of the Commission to enforce a provision of this MOA shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions of this MOA or a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or similar condition or provision of this MOA, nor shall it in any way affect the validity of this MOA. If any section or clause of this MOA is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or is otherwise invalid under the law, it is the intent of the parties that the remainder of this MOA shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 16. Contract Administration. The Commission Board President, or the President's designee, shall be the representative for administering this MOA on behalf of the Commission. The Executive Director of AML shall be the representative for administering this MOA on behalf of the Commission.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

The Commission:

ALASKA REMOTE SELLER
SALES TAX COMMISSION

By:

Its:

AML:

ALASKA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

The parties have executed this MOA effective as of the Effective Date.



ARSSTC Collections Policy

Lead-up to Collections action

- -Assessment is finalized w/o protest or underpayment is established.
- -Send email notification to user on account, requesting payment in full as soon as possible.
- -If seller does not submit payment in 30 days, send certified letter to address on record, demanding payment within 30 days.
- -If payment is not received by the deadline, collections action should be taken.

Alaska-Based Remote Seller Approaches

- Step 1 Request legal demand letter to seller from LBB.
- Step 2 If no response, AMSTP staff file lien in seller's jurisdiction.
- Step 3 After filing of lien, pursue filing of small claims judgment if balance is under \$5k (small claims limit is \$10k).
- Step 4 If balance is over \$5k, engage with LBB to pursue default judgment or confession of judgment.

Non-AK Remote Seller approaches

- Step 1 Do they have property in AK? Recorder's office search or other address search.
- Step 2 If no on Step 1, determine which state the business is located in.
- Step 3 Request legal demand letter to seller from LBB.
- Step 4 If no response, balances under \$5k be sent to 3rd party collection agency.
- Step 5 balances over \$5k would be pursued via obtaining judgment in AK, then domesticating judgment in the seller's home state.

Usage of 3rd Party Collection Agency

The Uniform code specifies that collection costs, including collection agency fees are to be passed on to the business owing the balance. As a result, neither ARSSTC member jurisdictions nor the ARSSTC itself will experience revenue shrinkage with the use of a collection agency.

AML is currently pursuing RFPs from collection agencies that can take collection action on a national level, regardless of where business is located.